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1 Scot Bernstein (SBN 94915)
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

) Case Ntunber BC353567

! .
~ ,

~~~Ri==~~S l ~CONFIRMING
~OMMUNrCATIONS INTERNATIONAL 1FINAL ARBITRATION AWARD
,-,IMITED; iFREEDOM
~OMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL
fiOLDLNGS, LIMITED; TIMOTHY )
iUNGGENBERG; FUSION
"EI,.ECOMMUNICATIONS j
NTERNATlONAL. INC.; FUSION VOIP . DEPARTMENT: 74
~CQUISITIONCORP.; and DOES 1 through )
00, Inclusive, l

Defendants )

Plaintiff's Petition to Confirm Contractual Arbitration Award came on regularly for

IJeating before this Court on May 19t 2009, and was granted. An ()rder on Petition to Confirm
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JUDGMENT CONFIRMING FINAL ARBITRATiON AWARD



~ 05/27/2009 19:59 FAX 916 933 5533 BERNSTEIN FAX 141 032

-;
4-

-(

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

e

9

10

11

12

13

14

lS

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Contractual Arbitration Award was issued by this Court on that date. Good cause appearing,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT JUDGMENT SHALL BE ENTERED~jojnt1y

atAd sevemlly, against

Timothy "Tim" Ringgenberg,

iFreedom Communications Incorporated, and

iFreedom Communications International Holdings, Limited,

in fl:lvor ofPaul Thoma.s Chester,

in all amounts and on all tenns specified below:

1. Damages and other sums as specified in the Final Arbitration Awal"d in the amount of

53,903,820,195.04 (three billion, nine hundred three million, eight hundred twenty

thousand. one hundred ninety~fiveU.S. Dollars and four cents); plus

2. Daily post-hearing. pre-award interest as provided in the Final Arbitration Award at

the rate of$267,239.8& per day for the 192 days from July 1.2008, through and includin

the January 8, 2009, date of issuance of the Final Arbitration Award, for a total of

551,310,056.96 (fifty-one million, three hundred ten thousand, fifty-six U.S. Dollars and

ninety-six cents); plus

3. Daily post-award interest as provided in the Final Arbitration Award on all sums set

forth above (which total $3,955~130,252.00) from January 8, 2009, the date of the Final

Arbitration Award, through and including the date this Judgment is entered. At the rate
.. .

often percent per annum specified in the Final Arbitration Award, that post-award daily. .

interest has accrued in the amount of $.1.0830597.33 per day (one million, eighty-three

thousand, five hundred ninety-seven U.S. Dollars and 33 cents per day), for a total of

5151.703,626.20 (one hundred fifty-one million, seven hWldred three thousand: six

hundred twenty-six U.S. Dollars and twenty cents) for the 140 days through May 28,

2

JUDGMENT CflNFIRMING FINAL ARJUTMTIQN ~WAm>
AWOl'flCESOF

COT D. B1iANs·reIN.
PIlOFllSSIONAL COIU'OIlATION
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2009, and, if this Judgment is not entered on May 28, 2009, continues to accrue at the

daily rate of 51,083.5:n.33 per day for each day, ifany, from and including May 29,

2009~ through and including the date on which this Judgment is entered by the Court.

4. The total of the sums set forth in paragraphs 1 through 3 above. through May 28~

2009, is 54.106,833,878.20 (four billion. one hundred six million, eight hundred thirty-

three thousand. eight h\U1dred seventy-eight U.S. Dollars and twenty cents). Interest shall

accrue on this Judgment at the legal rate from the date it is entered until it is satisfied. At

the current legal rate often percent per annum, applied to the May 28, 2009, swn of

$4,106,833.878.20, daily interest shall accrue in the amount of$1,12S,159.97 per day

(one million. one hundred twenty-five thousand, one hundred fifty-nine U.S. Dollars and

ninety..seven cents per day). That post-judgment daily interest shall be adjusted upward

accordingly if this Judgment is signed af\er May 28.2009.

5. The Final Arbitration Award attached hereto as Attachment "A" is incorporated herein

ill its entirety and made a part of this Judgment.
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ATED;---I1f\Y 28 2009
TERESA SANCHEZ-GORDON.

By:, ..--~~ ~--=-----=-----:,__
The Honorable TeresaSanchez-Oordol1
Los Angeles County Superior Court Judge
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Attomey& for: Plaintiff

Scot Bernstein (SBN 94915)
LAW OmCI'$ OF'SCOT BERNSTEIN'
lOS 10 Sl.1perfomss Avenue! Suite C .
Mather Field, California 95055
Telephone: 916-441-0100
Fax: 91Q..9~3-S533

Steve A. Buchwa,tter (SaN Hi850n '
LAW omCES OF STEVE A. ltUCHWALTER
16133 VentUra. Boulevard, Suite 560
Encino, California 91436
Telephone: 818-501.8987
Fax: 818-$01..0980
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PAUL mOMAS CHBSTER.

~laintiff,

VS.

iFRBEDOM COMMUNlCAnONS
INCORPORATED; iFREEDOM
COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATION~L

LIMITED; WREBDOM
COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS. LIMITED; TIMOTHY
RINGGENBERGj FUSION
TELECOMMUNICATIONS
INTERNATIONAL, INC.: FUSION VOIP
ACQUISITION CORP.; and DOES 1 through
100. Inolusive,

Defendants

AM$'Cue Number 1220036748

FINAL ARBITRATION A.WARD

Arbitrator: Hon. William F. MOO~ald(Ret.)

trove.up Hearing Date: June 19~ 2008

)PrQveMUp Hearing Time: lO;OO a.m.

-1-
,uum'1UTlON.AWARD
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PlaintlffPaul Thomas Chestorappeared at the hearing. tepr6Semted by his legal

The complaint in this matter is inco~orated. by rcferenCb, PJaintifftestified that

2 This Pinal Arbitration Award adses fl'oma prove-Up heanng (the ''bo,ruing'') held

3
,at the offices ofJAMS. In Los Angeles, California, on June t9, 2008. at 10:00 a.m.

4

S
6 counsel. Scot Bernstein, of the Law Offioes ofScot Bernstein, Mather ~ield. Callfbmia,

7 and Stc:lve A. Buchwaltert ofthe Law Oftie~s ofSteve A. Buehwalter, Enctno~ California.

8 Defendants Timothy I4Tim" Ringgenbmg ('!R.ltlggenberg"). iFreedOnl

9 Comm.unioations Incorpotatoo. r'lFI") and iF~c;lom Communications: International

10 Holdings, Limited <"Holdings''), did not Qppear. Rb1ggenberg, In and Holdinp, 4111 of

11 which may be referred to eollectively as i'Defendants," have be., repr:eG~ntedin this
12

arbitration by Ringgenberg conilituously beginning inDeeem'bw 2007i when
13
14 Ringgenberg SUbstituted in as the r~flsentative ofall n.,fendants and De~dan1S'

1S former oounsel, the Quintana taw Group, substituted out. J.AMS provided all partic$

16 with notice ofthe date, time and looation ofthe heating. That notiQe was sent to the

11 Plaintiff's rcp~aet11'Ati~$~ Scot Bernstein Qnd Steye A. Buchwaltet, by fa:K. and U.S. mail.

18
The same notioe was SElttt by fllX and certified mail to Ringgenberg at the fax number and

thf) three addresses JAMS had on file for him. The Defcmdants received that notioe. as
o
1 evidenced by Ringgenberg's letter dated Jun~ 18. 200&, which wu faxed to and received

2 by JAMS on. June 191 2008. IUnggenberg's lett«' announoed Ringgenberg'! and the

3 Defel1dant$' intention not to appear at the hQaring. Thus, the heatiq went forward ttl the

Defendants' aOsODce.

5

6
all xnateda1 811epdoDs of'1be compIalnt wore true and CQlWet, 'Based upon the

7

_0_... _--1--,--_
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1 documents presented at the bc8ring, tbo sworn testimony ofPlaintt~ and tho admissions

:2 ofDefl:tldants, inchuling Defendants' doemed admissions, the Arbitrator finds and

:3 a.wards as follows.

4 Liability.

s

6

7

8

9

10

11

1,2.

13

14­

1~

16

17

Tho Arbitrator finds in favor ofPlaintl1rOn aU theories of liability, i'n<:luding the

following:

Breach ofoontract

Breach oftho implied covenant ofgood faith anel fair dealing

Conversion

Failure to pay wages pursuant to California Labor Code § 201

Failure to pay wages upon diacbarge -waitJns time penalties pursuant to Labor
Code § 203 and otherpenalties

Failure to cOtnpensato for all hours workedpursuantto La'borCode §§ 510, 1'194
and 1l94,2 and rwc Wage Order #4

Failure to pa.y overtime and minimum wage compensation under federal1sw

Violation ofCalifornia Business and Professions Code § 17200

18 Additlb'tUkl Fiodings

19
. 1, The Arbitrator.specifieally oo~ider«1 the issue ofjudsdietion over Defendants

20

21

22

23

IFreedom Communications Incorporated, iF:reedom Communioatlone International

Holdings, Limite~ and Timothy Riniienberg. end dewrmined that he :tw

Jurisdiction over those Dtfendaslts.

2. The Arbitrator detennined tha.t Defendants iFreedom Communieations Inoorporated,

lFteedoro Communioations l'ntem4tional HoIdiugss Limited, and Timothy

RinssenbcJi moved to oompel this arbitration, negotiated and etJtEI..od into a
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. stipulation to arbitrate, participated in 'tho arbi1rator selection proocas, file<! answers,

partioipated in motion practice, and otherwise particlpated in 1hie arbitration

proceeding.

The Arbitrator determined that Defendants iFreedom CommuniC41tioDs lnoorporated, .

iFreedom Communications JntematioJW Holdings, Limited, and Timothy

Riniionberg received notice ofthis hearing, participated in a conference call

regrnding this hearing, aad CUd not request that it be pOstpoIWd.

The Arbitrator detenniDod that D~endants iFreedom Communications Incorporated,

iFl'fledOm Communications International Holdinp. Limited, and Timothy

Ringgenberg, through their representatiYElt Timothy RJnggenberg, were invited to

pro'Vide a certified shorthand repo~r to fCleotd the proceedings at the June 19, 2008,

prove-up hearing, and that they tlxpressly deQllned to do 1i0.

the Arbitrator has determiried that Defendants iFreedom Communications

Ineo@orated~ iFreectom Communications International Holdings. Limited. and

Timothy Ringgenberg, snd each ofthem. obtained services and property from

Plaintiffby means offalse pretenses. false representations, and aott'al fraud regarding

matters other thlUl those Def'endantZl' PXld those Defendants' insiders- own fmmcial.
oondition. '!he amotult ofmoney that thOSt:l Oef~ndants obtained from Plaintiff in

that manner is equal to the £WI amount ofthis award.

The A:bitratorhas determined that Plaint~ft'has shown by clear and convincing

evidence that Defondants iFmdom Communications Incorporated, iFrefldom.

C.ommunication. :ittt.emationaJ Holdings, Limited, and Timotby Ringgenberg, and ::

~aeb ofthem, engaged in a pattern ofdcspioablo conduct that constitutea oppres8io~
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18

.fntlJ(1llud malice within the meaning of8~on3294 of the Califomia Civil Code, $Q

as to lustier an award ofexemptat}' and. punitwo damages in the amounts set forth
below.

the Arbitrator fmds that Plaintiff is entitled to an award ofattorneys' fees and costl

W1dcr applicable Califomia and federal law and hereby awards Pla.{ntlttattorneys'

fCCl& and COGts irt the amounts set fort,h below.

The Arbitrator his cletbrmhted that an earlier award ofsanouons in the amount of

51;no.oo against Defendants iFreeclom Communications IncorpoJ:ated, iFreedom

Communications International Holdings, LUnite~ and TImothy Ringgenberg shall be

added into end mo{uded'in this award.

Pursuant to the Stipulation for Arbitration, all arbitration fees and othw fees an.ci

costs ofJAMS and. the Arbitrator are asse~$ed jointly and swetally a.gainst

'.Defendants iFreedom Communications IncotpOrated, iFreedom CommuniQatlons

International Holdings, Limited, end Timothy Ringgenberg. 'those Defendants sheJI

reimburse Plaintiff for ft;~ ofJAMS and the Arbitrator in the amount of S 5,532.45,

which swn shaU be added into and included In this award.

19 10. All damages and other amounts awarded hl:lrcnll (inoluding, without Umitetion,

20

21

22

23

24

compeo,$lt,totY de.mages, intere~ penalties, exemplary and punitive damages, ,

attomeys' fees and costs) are awerdedjotntly and Iieverally against Defendants

iFreedo-m Communications Inoorporated, iFreedom Communication! bttemationaI

Holdings. Limi~ed, and Timothy Ringgenberg.

".l. 2S 11. The Al:bitrator has determined that all amounts that Defend~ts should have paid to

26

27

Plaintiffbut did not, i.e., all compensatory damagts, are awarded to Plau,.tlff:t"or and

s
!

I
i
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1

2

3

4

asal'O.ult offraud and c1efalca1ioI1 by Defendants iPreedom Communications

Incorporated, iFreedom ConunUnications Intemational Holdings, Limited, and

tin10thy Rblsgeuberg. and eaob ofthem, while those Defendants, and each ofthell4

MRI acting in a fiduciary oapaoity with respect to Plaintiff.

5
Damages and OtlA,r Sums Awsrde4

6

1
The Arbitrator a\Vards the following damaaes and othet SutnS to Plaintiff:

12 S7,OOOlluontb Wlderpayment for June 200S - August lS, 200~:
13 $12,OOOlmonth underpa.yment for August 16. 200S - September 30,2005:

Sl2,QOQlmont:b for OctQQcp' 200S ... l3ectemm 20QZ CtD" w/o causo);
14 Total Unpaid Salary

15 A.t. Interest on Unpaid Salary

S 17,500.00
S 18,000.00
$288.000_00
$323,500.00

16

\7
Defondants are liable to Plaintifffor interest on the unpaid salary up tbrough and

including June 30', 2008. in the sum of$61,335.60, together with daily interest after that
18
19 date in 'the sum ofS88.63/day. cOlnputed as follows:

20 a. Interest through June 30, 2.008. The avenge date ofunderpe.ymenflnonpayment of

21 salaIY is halfway between JW1e 15, 200S and September 30~ 2007, O{ approximately

22 August 8, 2006. The time ela.p!ld from. August 8, 2006 to June 30, 2~08t is

23 approxiln.ately 1year, 10-3/4 months or approximately 1.896 years.

S 61,3:3!t60Interest ::. S323f SOO.OO X 10%/Yearx 1.896 years =

b. Daily IDtere$t after JUJae 30, 2008.

Posf.06300S Daily Interest - $323,500.00 x 1O%/Year:ll: 1~ar136S de.ys • ~ 88.63/dlly

6
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1
2 B. CODun.lsslon Strneture

.3 'The employment contract provides that Defendants are to pay Plaintiffa

4 commission strIJot11re of'fJVI' percent ofsross sales on an ongoins oij=,is, and tha.t

5 Plaintift"s right to those payments swvives any termlllation without oause initiated by the
6

:Defendfltlt.$. The Arbittator finds 1luttDefendants hav~ :refused to pa.y Plaintiftthat
7
8 component ofhis compensation; that they have breaohed the employment COn1:l'aet in that

9 respeot; and that !>laintiffis entitled to immediate payment of the portion ofthat ongoIng

10 obligation that already ill owed. The Arbitrator further finds that Plaixltiffwas not

11 termina.ted for oause and therefore is entitled.to paymem ofthat co1tl~i$sionstructure on

12 "going-forward buls.
13

14
Parasraph 7.1 oftho employment (lontract providestbat, in the eventot8.

tennination without causa by the employer. Plaintiff is enti1led to receive the ovmidc
IS
16 ~ommisslon on an ongoing and permanent basis. Thus, Plaintiffrequested a. Bum

17 calculated as the discounted present value of that str~am ofpayments in perpetuity.

l8 Plaintifrs request is in that respect denieo. Instead, the Arbitrator awards a.ll sums owed

19 through tho date of~laintiff' s termination together with the present value of84 months of

20
payments..folloWing termination.

21

22

23
DetennJna1:iQn Qftho amount owad for each month requires a determination and

24 projection ofgross sales. Defendants made this dtrtennination dim~lt by conoeaUng

25 their ItOBS Bales data'durlng discovery, even afterhaving been ordered to produce that

26

27
7
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1 data. Thus, Pla!ntitf'is omitted to an adverse hife~nce, end we m.ust usc those~ data

2 points that are available.

3 One such datapoint is provided by Dofcndants' July 24, 2005, letter addrt8sed to

4 '(Dear Fellow Shareholders" and signed by Ringgenberg. That letter states as fol1ow;!
5

6

7

On a positlv~ Dote, I am pleased to report that our company had a benohm.ark
month in June with revenue reaching- US$53S,OOO. This is arecord month for us
and the trends continue to move i:h the right dir~tion.

,
'!
I
i

IfDefendants had credJ."ble aocounting books and record:.! to support a contentioD
8

9 that the June 2005 gross revet\\l~ fi~was different than they ~presented to their

10 sharehold«sl they should have produced ¢em. They did not. Thus, the 9lS35,OOO figure

11 will fonn the basis faJ: damage calculatiOns with regard to Plaintiffs override

12 commissions.
13

14
Additional data points that ate a'\l'ailable inolude Defendants' adrnissiorls that

gr~wth tatcs 0120% per lIloJrth were achieved during the third through eighth months
15 . -
16 following the beginning ofPlaintftrs employment. and that gt'O'Wth rates of10% pet

17 month were achieved dutillg the ninth through fourteenth months following the beginning

18 of PlaintIff, employment. Thus. we use those growth rates to caloulate the override

19 commissions owed, as thOse are the only fIgures availAble. Further, givina the

20
Defendants the hen$fit ofthe doubt, 'We utili2! the lower ofthe two growth tates, 10% PO!

21
month, as the tate applioable to the period from the fifteenth month following the

22
23 beginnJng ofPlaintitr:i employment tbroup the eighty.fourth month following his

24 ~rmination.

~5 Utilizing '!he data points above, an :Excel aproadsheet was udlhcd to perform a

26 calculation of(1) the commissions owed and. to be owed, (2) shnplo irrtere$t at the rate of

27
. 8
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1 ten percent per annum on commissions owed tor June 2004 tbroup June 2008, and (3)

2 the present va.lue! of:commissions to be owea for the period from July 2008 through

3 S&ptembcr 2012 (the eighty..fourth month). diseoWlted at the rate offive poroent per

4 annum. Blled upon those calculations, the following amounts are $.warded to Plafnti:ff.

5 jointly and soverally against aU Defendants:
6

7

8

9

'. 10

Commissions Ow'ed, J"W18 2004 ~ rune 2008 5

mterest on Commissions Owed, June 2004 -June 2008 S

Present Value of Con1Iniasiol1s to be Owed,
July 2008 - September 2012 S

8,986,346.83

708~61.99

964,342,168.59

.B.1. IDterest on Unpaid CommtuloD. Structure
11 .
12 a. Interest. Interest through Juno 30, 2008, is as set forth above.

13 b. Daily IntaNit .. Total ofcommissions owe4 Mod present value ofcommissions to be
owed x 10O/Jyear x 1 year/36S days =

14 PQst-06300S Daily IDterett po; ($ 8,986,346.83 +:s 964,342.168.59) x lO%oYear
IS xl year1365 days k ... S 266,665.3S/day

16
c. ShaN! orStock

The employment contract provides that. 1.1pOn execution ofthat contract.

Communications International Limited ('iIntemational") to Plaintift. Defendan~

17

18
19 Defendants were to provide 1,1 million shares ofcommon sto<:~ of iFreedom .

~O

21 breached the employm!Jlt contract by failing to provide those shares oflntemational.

22 More recently, .Defendants provided Pleintiffwith 1.1 million t1hart!s ofHoldings, 1l Hong

23
Kong oorporation that Plaintiffis infonned and believes lUld on that groWld a11egesto"~

24

'"

26 Plaintiffno way to determine the relative valuations ofthe shares he actually received

&.uccessor in interest to International. Despite PIai~.~iff' Grequests, Defendants gave
25

21
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1 compared Witb the shares the employmmt oon.trnot entitled him to receive; nor.did

2 Defendant$ explain the reason for the creation ofHoldingli as a $\locessor entJty.

3 The employment contract p~ovides that Defendants were to issue an additional

4 600,000 shares ofQommon stock oflntemational to PlaiDtitrin two stages provided

5
ocrtaIn conditions were met, As a firstst., Defendants were ~quired to provide

6
.Plaintitl'witb an a.dditional 300,000 share~ ofoommon stock ofInter.national upon

7
8 achievement ora six-month period with consistent sales growth averaging20%p~,
9 month. That six-montb period was 10 beSin 60 day$ after the date ofthe employment

10 contract.

11 The Arbitrator finds tbat the required growth objective was achieved; that

12 Plaintiffrequested that the additional shares be prOVided in accordanoe with 1he
13

employment contract; an(1 that Defendants further breached that COJ1t1'Aet by failing and
14

refusing to provide thlll required 300,000 shares to Plaintiff.
15

16 . As a second stage, the emplQymentcontract provides that Defendant!! were to

17 provide Plaintiffwith a further 300,000 shares ofcotnmon stock ofIntemational upon

18 achievement ofa follow~on six-month period with eonsi&tent sales growth averaging 10%

19 pel;" month. The Arbi1rator finds that this further requited growth obje~vo was lohieved

20
as well; that Plaintiffrequested that the additional share$ be provided in accordanoe with

21
the employment OOntraoti and that Defendants further breached the employment oontrllQ't

22
23 by failing and refusing to provide the required additional 300,000 shares to Plaintiff,

24 dc~'pite Plaintiffs requests for those shares.

25

26

27
10
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1

2

Dfseussion and C,Ie.u.latfORI of!!em'.
Def¢ndants neverprovided Plaintitfwith the 1,700,000 shares f)flntematfonal to

S 1,700,000.00

3 which be was entitled. But they are c:leemed to havo admitted that those shares were

4 worth no less than 51.00 per share. See Plaintiff's Requosts for Admissions, RFA

S number 16; and the Order on Plaintiffs Motio1\ t6 Vaoate Plaintiff. I>isQOver:y
6

Deadlines, Motion to Compel Discovery Responses and Request for Sanetions dated
7
g February 1S. 2008. Thorefore, Defondants o~e Plaintiffnot less than SI.700,OOO as

9 damages for that breach:

10 Damages for faflot'e to issue shares =

11 C.I. Illtel'est On Value of Undelivered Stock

12 a. fuUJred on Initial 1.100,000 Shares. The initial 1,100,000 shares were due upon the
13

signing of the employment contract on June 18, 2004. Employment contract paragtaph
14

6.4. Thus, IS cfJune 30.2008. the $1.100,000.00 in d.amages'arising from the failure to
IS
16 issue those shares will haye been oweQ. for 4.033 yeatS. Tbettlfore.

17 Interest;:: $1 1100.000.00)£ lOo/oIyear X 4.033 years· $ 443,630.00

18 b. l~tert$t 00 Additionsl 3OG,OOO Shares, The next 300,000 shares were due On

19 February 18, 200S. eight mont.h$ ~eX' the commenoement ofemployment. Employment
~' ,

,oontract paragraph 6.6, Thus, as ofJune 30, 2008, the $300,000.00 in damages arisins
21

from the failure to issue those shares will have been OWl!r;t for 3.366 years. The~fore,
22
23 Interest:;; S300,OOO,OO'x lOo/cJyearx. 3.366 YI:lat1l = S 100,980.00

24 c. Jnter~t on Jrma1300,OOO Shares. The final 300.000 shates were due on August 18,

25 ~ ZOOS, fourteen months after the oommencement ofemployment. Employment contraot

I)

7
11 . dd
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1 puragraphs 6.6 and 6.7. Thus~ as otJune 30, 2008~ the $300.000.00 in damage$ arising

2 from the ~ure to issue those shares will have been owed for 2.866 year,. Therefore,

3 Xnterest ... $300.000.00 x iO%Iy~ x 2.866 years ==

4 d. D,dly Interest =S 1~700rOOO.OO x lO%/year x 1.yearl36S clays. Th*foro~
5

POlt-06300! Daily Interest· S~)7001000.00/3650=
6

7 D. Section 2802 Reimbunem.ntl Indemnification

S 465.7S1dal

8

9
The employment contract rcqulre$ Pefendants to reimburse Plaintiff for his

various expenses incurred in performing hisduties on Def~n6M.ts' behalf, mcludins but
10
11 notU~d to reimbursement for the oosts of lodging and transportation on 1rlps to .
Xl metropolitan Manila. The Arbitrator finds that Plaintlff'requestcd that reimbutsement

13repeatedly~ butDefendants breached1he employment contraet by failing to provIde the

14 required reimbut$ement ofPlaintlfrs expenses# whioh total approxhnately $3,542.«;7.

15 The employment contract further provides that, In the event ofterminatloD o£'Plalntiff
16

without c&use, be shall be entitled to 100% ofsny ongoing cost of lodging and
17

transportation in Manila., up to a maximum of$1.000 peT month. for" period up to one
18
19 year after tenntnatlon.· The Arbitrator find.! that none ofthat additional reimbursement

20 bas been paid by Defendants.

23 Plaintiffteaufied10 his conSQtVa.tlve estimate that he inOUITod $lQ;,OOO.OO ofongoing

21

22

.DiscQHion fWd C1kulatlON of DIUJlIi!i., .. ' "'. .... ..
Defendant owes $3,542.67 in expense reimbursements to Plaintiff. A,dditionallYt

i
~

!
·1

24
oosts of lodging and transportation jn Manila dwing the first Y'~. after his termination.

25
26 and the Arbitrator fmdstbat estimate reasonable gi~n Defendants· edmissions ana the

').1 absence oftellJtimany or doc1J1'l1ents to the oontrary. Thus, the Arbitrator finds that.

12
.AlUIlTM'iION AWABD
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1 pursuant to California. Labor Code section 2802, Plaintiffis entitled to re!mburscment of

2 .~ose expenses, totaling $13,S42.67, togetbet With interest and attomeys' fees.

3 Damase. for faJlure 10 reimburse expenses ­

4 D.l. Interest on tTnrelDlbnrsed Expenses

5 13,542.67

b. Intereston $10;000.00. The a.vorage date ofnonpayment o£the post-termination

914.23

the end oft>laintiff's employment, 2.75 years prior to June 30, 2008. Therefore.

Interest"" $ 3,542.67 x 1O%/ycar x 2.75 years "'"

S
a. Interest on $3.fi42.67. The $3,542.67 was owed no later than September 30, 2005

7

6

7

8

9

S '2,2S0.00

10 reimbursements ofexpenses of lodging and transportation in Manila fs the mid..polnt of

11 the one-year period foJlowingthe tenninatlon ofPlafutlff's employment, i.,., Maroh 31,

12 2006. That Is 2,25 years prior to June 30, 2.008. Therefore,
13

Inter6'lt ... $ 10,000,00x lOO/O/year x 2.25 years •

16 l'ost-063008 Daily lntenst· $13,542.67/3650­

17

=c
S 3.71/day.

The employment contract requires that all confidential izlfonnatiQn and materla,ls

E. ReturD of Plaintiff's Property
18

19

20 provided to Defendants by Plaintiffbe returned to Plaintiff. The Arbitrator finds that

21 Plaintiffdemanded orally and in writing that Defendants cease and c:ktsist :Erom direotly or

2~ indirectly utili2ing, storing or d~tributinS any otPlsbrtitrs materials inc1udjng~ without
23

limitation. all power-point }»'Bsentations, aU Ex.cel spreaQ.5he~ income Models foX' the
24

distribution foree, all broohures, falms, rec:oxdings, fIlms from meetins prosentations,
2S .
26 training materIals, copies ofthoso JXUlterla1a that were di5cributcd throughout the world,

27 wording su~." a$ PJ;ogressivo Compenl$atio~ ~lw'te oreated to show the l'e8i4ual

ARBtrRA~L AWA,BP
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1 Qomponaa.tion under Prosr&SSive CompensatlOl\ ideas. and partial wording ofthose

2 slogans u~li.zed today that were derive!! from ~laintifrs ~teriala. Additionally, the

:; Arbitrator fmds that Plaintiffdemanded orally and in writing that Defendanta announce to

4 III oftheir dlstrIbutors and employClCls wotld"Nidethat they are to cease using all sDoh

5 materials and to rotunl them to Plaintiffimmediately. 1b Arbitrtltor thex-oforo flnds that
6

Defendants have fUrther breac>hed the employment wntmot by CailinS and refUsing to
7
8 comply with Plaintiff's demands as described in tlUs paragraph,

9 Dj,cY,llpD and CaleoIavgDI ofD~m!g!l

10 The Arbitrator finds that Defendants were Obligated to return. all ofPlaintiff'I

11 property to him upon termination, h. t on September 30. 2005. PI~tifft.estif1ed to his

12 conservative estbttate that his property was worth 560,000;00 at that time, and the
13

Atbitrator fUlda that e$timate reasonable given Defertdanrs' admissions and the absence
14

oftestimoDY or documCt1ts to the contrary. The Arbitrator therefore finds that Defendan-m
15

16 owe Plaintiffnot less than $60,000.00 as damages for their faJlure or refusal to return his

17 property:

S 16,500.00

$ 60.000.00

14 I ,te

18 Damages for fallure to return property =
19 E.l. Interest on Da~ale.t toJ' lI'aUun to Return Property

20
a. Interest on 5'60,000.00. The $ 60,000,<10 was owed no later than SepM111ber 30,

21
2005, the end ofPlaintifrs emplo}'I1lentt 2.75 years prior to June 30,2008. Thercd'oro,

22
23 ID~rest - $ 60,000,00 If lOo/oIycarx 2.75 years'"

24 b. Dally Interest· $ 60,000,00 X1Oo/olycar X1 ycllt136S days. Therefore,

25 l'oltn0G3098 Dally laterest - $ 60,000.0013650 11II: $ 16.44/day
PM.

26

27

. !
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1 F. Labor Code Sectioll203 Wafting Penalty

2 The Arbitrator finds that Defendants tenninated Plaintiff's employment on

3 Se.ptember 29,2005; that Platntiffhad. a(;Croe~ unpaid WIles owed to him in the amounts

4 sot forth above at that time, Includi.ng all salary that should have been paid but wu not,

S
and all unpaid connnl$$loDI!i in amounts equal to fivo peroent ofgross sales on an ongoing

bast!l~ and that"tI1efiiilUl'Cl 'by Defendants, and lach of them, to pay those willes and
7
8 commissions 10 Plaintiffhas continued to the ptesflnt time.

9 The ·Arbitrator further findll that the failure of Defendants, and each of them, to

10 pay Plaintiff earned wages as alleged in the complaint was willful in that Plaintiff

1I ~fltedIymade both oral and written demands for payment ofhis eametl wages while he

12 was employed by Defendant, after tho date of his tenninatlon by Defendant. and
13

continuing up to tho date of the filing of the lawsuit. The Arbitrator therefore finds thlt
14

Plaintiff is entitled to "waiting penalties" under Labor Code Section 203, wbleh provides
15
16 that an employee1s wages sheIl oontlnue day by day, including wef;kends, until paid, up to

17 a maximum penalty of thirty days' pay. Beecl\lse more than thirty days have elapsed

18 since he WQS tenninated. Plaintiff is entitled to a penalty of'thirty (30) days' wages

19 pursuant to tabor Code Section ~03.

20

21

22

. .
nl!Fusslon and CalculatfoDs ofPenaltis

Plaintiff's fmal rate ofpay was as follows:

Salary ='l44.000.00/year:lt 1year/S2·weeks = $ 2,769,2)/week
23 Commia~lQn. $321.000,OO/year x 1year/52 weeks .. Sf 6,173.Q8lweek
24 Total S8~942.3l/week

2~ WaltJn2' Penalty = .30 daY$' pay • I) weeks x $ 8.942.311Mek •

26

27
15
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1 G. Labor Code Seetiot\ 224; Penalty

2 Plaintiff was employed from June 18t 2004, through S~.ptember 29, 2005. a total

3 of 15-112 months or 31 pay periods. California LabOr Codt section 226(a) reqWt.a that

4 the employer provide a written. itemi2ed statement ("pay siub") acoompanying a

5
paycheck ,and setting forth, among o1her things, the employee's gross wages and net

6

7
wages for the pay period. Labor COde·$.,ction 200 provides that "wages" inoltKW' ·Mt,

8 only salery but oommissions ss well. The Arbitrator finds that the figures on Plaintiff's

9 pay stubs did not include the commissions owed to him and thetef()~ failed. to provide

10 a~urate tigttteB for gross wases end net wages in 'Violation ofLabor Code seotlon 226(a).

11 The Arbitrator wds that Defendants' violations ofLabor Code section 226 were knowing

12 and intentional and that the penalties provided by Section 226(e) of the Labor Cod6~
13

owed to Plaintiff.
14

IS

16

DiScU"loD and C@,lculatiVDI otPenalties

Labor Code seQtion 2.26(e) provides 'that • employee who fCQoives pay stubs that

17 vIolate section 226(a) ;s entitled to $SO.OO for the first violation and $100.00 for each

18
subsequent vio~aticn. up to a. maximum ofS4.000,OO.

19

20
Pefendants' violftuon of Labor Co&:kl $~ctiQn 226(a) in eaoh of 31 pay periods

21 entitles Plaintlifto L,abor Code section 226 penalties computed as follows:

22 SectioD 226 P"lIalty • 1pay stub x $SO.OO/pay stub
+30 pay stubs x SlOO.OO/pay .$tub"

24 H. Punitive Damages

$ 3,050.00

The Afbitrator finds that conduct ofe"h of1h~~Defendants, including25

26 Defendants' conversion ofmonetary awns andproperty belonging to Plafntlffand

27
16
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•.

14

4

5

6
,'''>;~';\

7

8

9

1 . Defendants' obtainlng work and senrices frozn Pla,W,tift"without paying him, was wiUful,

2 wanton, maUcious, and oppressive. and wu despicab~eco~duetthat subjeoted Plail1tiff''t(l

3 a oru~l and unjust hardship in conscious disJ:egard ofPlaJntiff's rights. and that that

oonQu~twas engaged in by managerial employeas ofDefendants, so A8 toJustify an

awart.l ofexemplary andpunitive <1amaps In ~n amount appropriate to punish and make

(til ~~pleofDefendrmts. The Arbittator further notes that, Dotwithstandins tho fact

that they were requested and ordered to provide acoounting books and records tb~t would

have lent insight into theit tnlt financial condition, Defendants refused to I'rovide tboue

10 books and reoofde.

11 By virtue ofDe~n.dan.ts' admissions and the Ctther evidence in this; CftfJ\!I, Plaintiff

12 has establishod by olear and convinoing evidence that Defendants, and each of them,
13

ensaged 3n .. J)l!ttem ofdespicabl= conduct that oonstitutes oppression, fraud and rnaUO(l

within the meaning ofseotiof\ 3294 of the California Civil Code, so liS to JU$tify lU1 award
15
16 ofexemplqry and pun.11ive damages. The Al''bltl:ator1herefore aw81'ds punitive and

17 exeIJ11)16ry damag~5 to Pla.intiff, as aJoint And several obligation ofOefendants, in an

l8 1Ul10unt equal to three titne$ the damages awarded above, other than those amOlU11S

19 awarded for interest, penalties and attorneys' !ees and costs. TheNfOri,

20 lnnltlve Daro.aga .. 3 x $ 975,425.S58.09 =
21

L Attorneys' Fees and C()sts
22

$ ~26:J.7',674.2.7

Plaintiff'ls the prevailing party in thi& mattor and therefotQ is entitled to attomeya'23

24 fees pumlant to Labor Code §§ 218.5, 226, 1194 and 280'2., 68 well a 29 U.S.C. §21G.

~ The A.rbittatQ\' bas reviewed the lodestar: calculations for ~1aIntift" 8 attorney, ..,

.26 provided in tho declaratfons ofSco1 Bernstein a.t1d Steve A. BuohweJter, whichw~

27
17
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7

1 submitted at the h~ariD8. the Arbitrator finds ScotBernstein's biJIing rate of$550.00 per

2 hour to be reasonablo, and finds Steve A. Buohwa1~ s billing ra.te of5300.00 perhQW' to

3 be reasonable. Tho Arbitrator further finds th~t the 32S.0 hOurB expended on this case by

4 Mr. Bemstein through Juno 18.2008, and the 108.0 hours expended on this case by Mr.

S Buchwalter. to be reasonable. Thus, the Arbitrator IW determined that th~ lodestar
6

amounts of'$178,7S0.00 for Mr. Bernstein and 532,400.00 for Mr. BUQhwa}terllte

~ reasonable, as are the $1,054.5' !n cost advances by Mr. Bernstein,

.9 The Arbitrator recognl2'A:l$ that merely paying th~ lodestQ1" amount will not fully

I0 compensate Plaintiff's cauusel for their work.

11

12

13

14

CArt has long beta. recognized, however, that the contingent and defened Dature of
the fee award in civil rights or other We$ with statutoJY attorney' f~cs requires
that the fee bo acljusted in SOllIe manner to reflect the fact that the fair l1W'ket
value Qf'thc legal smri,:es provided on that basis is greater than the el1uivalent
nonQQntingent hourty rate, 'I

Horsfqrd v, Board cfImms (2005) 132 CalApp.4th 359.
15

16

17

18

19

'~A lawyer who both bears the fisk ofnot being paid and provides legal serviCfl$ is
not receiving the fair market "Value othie work ffhe is paid only for the second of
these functions. Ifhe is paid no more, competent counsel will be reluCUlnt to
aecept fee award cl1$es:'

Ketchum at 1133. quoting with approve.) from Loubedorf, the ContirJDOcy Fa.ctot

20 in Attomey Fee Awam~ (1981) 90 YalaL.I. 473. 480.

21

22

23

C'The purpose ota fee enhsncement~ or so-Called multiplier. for tlc;)ntingent risk is
to bring the financia1lnc~ntive8 for attorneys enforcin& importUlt eonrtitutionl1
rigbts~ such as those protected under the anti..SLAPP provi$~nJ into line with
inoentives they have to undertake <llahns for which th~ are PaId on a fee-for­
services basis!'

25

26

24
Ketchum at 1132.

..
.,The rIght ofemployees to their pay is amatter ofthe tlmdamental publio polley of

27 the State ofCalifornia and is wortJty ofthe same'kind ofprotection.

18
i

.\
I
!
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In detmDinins the appropriate muhipliQ" to a.ward in this CIIse. the Arbitrator has

litigation; th6 undtskabillty ofthe case; counsel's sklU in pft.paring and presentmg tbe

1
2 considered the contingent nature ofthe fee award; the no'Velty and oomplexity of the

3

4 case; and 'the results obtained, Based UpOt1 those factors, tho Arbitrator has determined

5 1hat a multiplier of3.0 shall be applied to the fees ofPlaintiffs' attomeys In this case.
6

1
~re,

8 Attorneys' Fees • 3.0 x ($178,750.00 +532,"00.00) =t

9

1,0 Summary ofAw~rd

11 Pla.intiff is awarded, and Defendants iFreedQm Com:m.unicatiolllllnoorporated. iFteedom

12 Communications International Holdings, Limited, and Timothy Rinaaenbel'g, jointly and

13
severally. shall pay to Plaintiffthe followin8 sums:

S .27S,425,558.0~

$ 1,420.011.82

$ S3,§53.J6

S 3&~O.OO

s a,926.1'16,614,27

S §A4SO.00

$ 1154.5$

S 1,210.00

S 5,S32,4~

PunitiveDamages (H)

Attorneys' Costs (1)

Sanctions Previously AwarrJed (parasraph 8, above)

JAMS FeesPaid by Plaintiff (paragraph 9, above)

Post-J'une 30. 2008,
Daily Interest (A.1.b. +B.I.b. "'" C.l.d. +D,1.c. +E.l.b.) S,__--=:z6&l7~J=39::.::.88=

Attorneysf Fees (1)

Compensatory Damages (A+B+C+n +E)

Interest On CompensatoryDamages
(A.l.a.. +B.l.a.. +C.l.a., b. & c. +0.1.&. & b. +£.1.a.)

Labor Cod" Section 203 Waiting Penalties (F)

La.bor Code Section 225 Penalties (G)

14

15

16

17

°J8

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27
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Simple intorcst shall accrue on all tWOu;nts set fOtth above atthe rate often

Defendants had twenty calendar days following the date ofservice oftbe Interim

1
2 percent (10%) per annl.lm eommenalng 011 the date ofserriee ofthis award.

3

&n. William F, McDoDald (Ret.)
Arbitrator

20

4 Arbitration Award herein to file and serve Plaintiffwith any objection. to the Interim

5 Arbitration Award. 'Ihey did not do so. ACODrdinglyt this Award is final.
6

1
8 Datod:,_......,~q..----,'--_

9

10

11

12

13

14

IS

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27
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poo,OF SERVICEBYPACSIMILE & V.S. MAU.

Re: Chestert Paul T. vs. iFreedom Conm1\lnications mo. et 81.
~No. 1220036748

X, Bea1rice N. Rodtiatie~ not a paxtyto tho within action, hereby declare that on

Januury 8, 2009 I served the a.tmched FINAL ARBII'RATION AWARD on the parties in the

within action by facsimile uddepositing true copies thereofenolosed in sealed en:ve1opes with

postage thereon fully prepaid. in the United States Mail, at Orange, CALIFORNIA, addressed as

folloW!:

I ~cll!lXC underp=altyofperjmy the fa

Orange, CALIFORNIA on January 8) 2009.

.Steven A Buahwalt«B~.
I.Jo Sine A. Buohwaltet
16133 Ventura Blvd.
Suite 560
Bacino, CA 91436 USA
Tel: (818) 501..8987
''ft'ex:-(218) SOl..09g0

'I'fmotb.y Ringgenberg
iF:reedom Communications lne.
P.O. Box 784
Blu= SprbJp. MO 64013
Tel: 949-394--0234
Fax: 87'1·840-8241

Timothy RiDggenberg
clo Linda Ringgenbeta
2805 S.W. 10th Street
BlueS~ MO 64015

Scott BesmsteinEsq.
UO Soot :Ber:nstoin
10510 SUperforlreSs Ave.
suttee
Mather Field, CA 9S6S5
Tel: 916447..0100
Fq,: 916..933-5533

Timothy Ringgtmb6rg
10361 Calle~Cla

\Fountain Valley. CA 92708

utedat
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Paul Thomas Chester v. iFreedom Communications, Incorporated, et al
Case Number BC353567

PROOF OF SERVICE

I. theundersigncd, declare that I am a citizen ofthe United States. over the age of
eighteen yeats, and not a party to the within action. My business address is lOS10
Superfortress Avenue, Suite C. Mather Field, Califomia 95655. On this date. I served
the following document: NOTICE OF SIGNING ANDFILlNG OF ORDER ON
PETITION TO CONFIRM CONTRACTUAL ARBITRATION AWARD AND
SUBMISSION OF [PROPOSED] JUDGMENT CONFIRMING FINAL
ARBITRATION AWARD

XX by sending via Federal Express, UPS or other overnight courier
service to the person(s) Indicated on the attached service list

XX by sending via United states Post Office Express Mail to the
person(s) indicated on the attached service list

XX by sending via facsimile at the facsimile number(s} indicated

by placing a true copy thereof in a sealed envelope with the postage
thereon fully prepaid and depositing ittn the United States Mall to the
following person(s)

by personally delivering a true copy thereof to the following person(s)
at the address(es) set forth below

, .';'

See attached service list

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct and
that this declaration was executed ttlis 27th day,~ May ,2009, at

... El Dorado Hills • California. ,•../P"'/' ,.:~,,:"7 ...

~~.... , ~_.~::~::.~~~
··1 ~,"" -':l"" ~~..J:. -~ "..... ~..........~ ,..- ~--- ._.-

Scot BernsteIn
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Via U.S. Post Office Exprese Mail:

Tim Ringgenberg
iFreedom Communications Incorporated
iFreedom Communications International Holdings, Limited
iFreedom Communications International Limited
P.O. Box 784
Blue Springs, MO 64013

Fax: 877-840-8241

Via UPS Next Day Delivery:

Timothy Ringgenberg
IFreedom Communications Incorporated
iFreedom Communications International Holdings, Limited
iFreedom Communications International Limited
10361 Calle Independencla
Fountain Valley, California 92708

Via UPS Next Day Delivery:
Timothy Ringgenberg
iFreedom Communications Incorporated
iFreedom Communioations International Holdings, Limited
iFreedom Communications International Limited
0/0 Linda Rin~genberg

2805 S.W. 10 fi Street
Blue Springs, MO 64015

Via UPS Next Day Delivery:

IFreedom Communications International Limited
cia Marie Green
10361 Cane Independencia
Fountain Valley, California 92708


